BY-LAWS

OF

AUBURN MEADOW TOWNHOME ASSOCIATION, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

			Page		
I.	Nam	e, Membership, Applicability and Definitions			
	1.	Name	4		
	2.	Principal Office	4		
	3.	Definitions	4		
Π.	Asso	ciation: Meetings, Quorum, Voting, Proxies			
	1.	Membership	4		
	2.	Place of Meetings	4		
	3.	Annual Meetings	4		
	4.	Special Meetings	4		
	5.	Notice of Meetings	5		
	6.	Waiver of Notice	5		
	7.	Adjournment of Meetings	5		
	8.	Voting	6		
	9.	Proxies	6		
	10.	Majority	6		
	11.	Quorum	6		
	12.	Conduct of Meetings	6		
	13.	Action Without a Meeting	6		
ш.	Boar	Board of Directors: Number, Power, Meetings			
	A.	Composition and Selection			
	1.	Governing Body; Composition	6		
	2.	Directors During Declarant Control	6		
	3.	Number of Directors	7		
	4.	Nomination of Directors	7		
	5.	Election and Term of Office	7		
	6.	Removal of Directors and Vacancies	7		
	7.	Voting Procedure for Directors	7		
	B.	Meetings			
	8.	Organization Meetings	8		
	9.	Regular Meetings	8		
	10.	Special Meetings	8		
	11.	Waiver of Notice	8		
	12.	Quorum of Board of Directors	8		

	13.	Compensation	9	
	14.	Conduct of Meetings	9	
	15.	Open Meetings	9	
	16.	Executive Session	9	
	17.	Action Without a Formal Meeting	9	
	C.	Powers and Duties		
	18.	Powers	9	
	19.	Management Agent	11	
	20.	Accounts and Reports	11	
	21.	Borrowing	12	
	22.	Community Association Delegates	12	
IV.	Offic	cers		
	1.	Officers	12	
	2.	Election, Term of Office and Vacancies	13	
	3.	Removal	13	
	4.	Powers and Duties	13	
	5.	Resignation	13	
	6.	Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Leases, Checks, E	tc. 13	
V.	Con	nmittees	13	
VI.	Mis	Miscellaneous		
	1.	Fiscal Year	14	
	2.	Parliamentary Rules	14	
	3.	Conflicts	14	
	4.	Books and Records	14	
	5.	Notices	14	
	6.	Amendment	15	

BY-LAWS OF AUBURN MEADOW TOWNHOME ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I NAME, MEMBERSHIP, APPLICABILITY AND DEFINITIONS

- Section 1. Name. The name of the Association shall be Auburn Meadow Townhome Association, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as the "Association").
- Section 2. Principal Office. The principal office of the Association shall be located initially at the principal business location of Declarant, and thereafter such location as determined by the Board of Directors. The Association may have such offices, either within or without the State of Indiana, as the Board of Directors may determine or as the affairs of the Association may require.
- Section 3. <u>Definitions.</u> The words used in these By-laws shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions and Easements for Auburn Meadow Townhome Association, Inc. (said Declaration as amended, renewed or extended from time to time, is hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Declaration"), unless the context shall prohibit.

ARTICLE II ASSOCIATION: MEETINGS, QUORUM, VOTING, PROXIES

- Section 1. Membership. The Association shall have one (1) class of membership, as more fully set forth in the Declaration, the terms of which pertaining to membership are specifically incorporated herein by reference.
- <u>Section 2.</u> <u>Place of Meetings.</u> Meetings of the Association shall be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient to the Members as may be designated by the Board of Directors either in the Project or as convenient thereto as possible and practical.
- Section 3. Annual Meetings. The first meeting of the Members, whether a regular or special meeting, shall be held within one (1) year from the date of incorporation of the Association. The next annual meeting shall be set by the Board so as to occur no later than ninety (90) days after the close of the Association's fiscal year. Subsequent regular annual meetings of the Members shall be held within thirty (30) days of the same day of the same month of each year thereafter at an hour set by the Board. Subject to the foregoing, the annual meeting of the Members shall be held at a date and time as set by the Board of Directors.
- Section 4. Special Meetings. The President may call special meetings. In addition, it shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the Association if so directed by

resolution of a majority of a quorum of the Board of Directors or upon a petition signed by at least ten percent (10 %) of the total votes of the Association. The notice of any special meeting shall state the date, time and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.

Section 5. Notice of Meetings. Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of any meeting of the Members shall be delivered, either personally or by mail, to each Member entitled to vote at such meeting, not less than ten (10) days nor more than fifty (50) days before the date of such meeting, by or at the direction of the President or the Secretary or the officers or persons calling the meeting.

In the case of a special meeting or when required by statute or these By-laws, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.

If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the Member at his address as it appears on the records of the Association, with postage thereon prepaid.

Section 6. Waiver of Notice. Waiver of notice of meeting of the Members shall be deemed the equivalent of proper notice. Any member may, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the Members, either before or after such meeting. Attendance at a meeting by a Member, whether in person or by proxy, shall be deemed a waiver by such member of notice at the time, date and place thereof, unless such Member specifically objects to a lack of proper notice at the time the meeting is called to order. Attendance at a special meeting shall also be deemed a waiver of notice of all business transacted thereat unless objection to the calling or convening of the meeting, of which proper notice was not given, is raised before the business is put to vote.

Section 7. Adjournment of Meetings. If any meeting of the Association cannot be held because a quorum is not present, a majority of the Members who are present at such meeting, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) nor more than thirty (30) days from the time the original meeting was called may be transacted. If a time and place for the adjourned meeting is not fixed by those in attendance at the original meeting or if for any reason a new date is fixed for the adjourned meeting after adjournment, notice of the time and place of the adjourned meeting shall be given to Members in the manner prescribed for regular meetings.

The Members present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Members to leave less than a quorum, provided that at least twenty-five (25 %) percent of the total votes of the Association remains present in person or by proxy, and provided further that any action taken shall be approved by at least a majority of the Members required to constitute a quorum.

- Section 8. Voting. The voting rights of the Members shall be as set forth in the Declaration, and such voting rights provisions are specifically incorporated herein.
- Section 9. Proxy. At all meetings of Members, each Member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of each meeting. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the Member of his or her Residential Unit or upon receipt of notice by the Secretary of the Board of the death or judicially declared incompetence of a Member or upon the expiration of eleven (11) months from the date of the proxy.
- Section 10. Majority. As used in these By-laws, the term "majority" shall mean those votes of Owners, or other group as the context may indicate, totaling more than fifty percent (50%) of the total number.
- Section 11. Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in these By-laws or in the Declaration, the presence in person or by proxy of one-third (1/3) of the Members shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Association. Any provision in the Declaration concerning quorums is specifically incorporated herein.
- Section 12. Conduct of Meetings. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Association, and the Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meeting and record in a minute book all resolutions adopted at the meeting, as well as a record of all transactions occurring thereat.
- Section 13. Action without a Meeting. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of the Members, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of the Members, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be signed by all of the Members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof, and such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Members.

ARTICLE III BOARD OF DIRECTORS: NUMBER, POWERS, MEETINGS

A. Composition and Selection.

- Section 1. Governing Body: Composition. The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board of Directors. Except as provided in Section 2 of this Article III, the Directors shall be Members or spouses of such Members; provided, however, no person and his or her spouse may serve on the Board at the same time.
- Section 2. <u>Directors During Declarant Control.</u> The Directors shall be selected by the Declarant acting in its sole discretion and shall serve at the pleasure of the Declarant until such time as is specified in the Declaration, unless the Declarant shall earlier surrender this right to select Directors. The Directors selected by the Declarant need not be owners or residents in the project. After the period of Declarant appointment, all Directors must be Members of the Association.

Section 3. Number of Directors. The number of Directors in the Association shall be not less than three (3) nor more than five (5), as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine by resolution. The initial Board of Directors shall consist of three (3) members and are identified in the minutes of the first meeting of the Board.

Section 4. Nomination of Directors. Except with respect to Directors selected by the Declarant, nominations for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by a Nominating Committee, The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and two (2) or more Members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors not less than thirty (30) days prior to each annual meeting of the Members to serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but in no event less than the number of vacancies or terms to be filled. Nominations shall be permitted from the floor. All candidates shall have a reasonable opportunity to communicate their qualifications to the Members to solicit votes.

Section 5. Election and Term of Office. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein: At the first annual meeting of the membership after the termination of the Declarant's right to select directors and at each annual meeting of the membership thereafter, Directors shall be elected. All Directors shall be elected at-large. All Members of the Association shall vote upon the election of Directors. So long as there are three (3) Directors, the term of one (1) Director shall be fixed at one (1) year, and the term of one (1) Director shall be fixed at two (2) years, and the term of one (1) Director shall be fixed at three (3) years. The members of the Board of Directors shall hold office until their respective successors have been elected by the Association.

Section 6. Removal of Directors and Vacancies. Unless the entire Board is removed from office by the vote of the Association Members, an individual Director shall not be removed prior to the expiration of his or her term of office, except by the vote of a majority of Members.

In the event of death or resignation of a Director, his or her successor shall be selected by a majority of the remaining members of the Board and shall serve for the unexpired term of the predecessor.

Section 7. <u>Voting Procedure for Directors.</u> The first election of the Board shall be conducted at the first meeting of the Association. At such election, the Members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected.

B. <u>Meetings</u>.

Section 8. Organization Meetings. The first meeting of the members of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the membership shall be held within ten (10) days thereafter at such time and place shall be fixed by the Board.

Section 9. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the Directors, but at least four (4) such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year with at least one (1) per quarter. Notice of the time and place of the meeting shall be communicated to Directors not less than four (4) days prior to the meeting; provided, however, notice of a meeting need not be given to any Director who has signed a waiver of notice or a written consent to holding of the meeting.

Section 10. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by written notice signed by the President, Vice President or Secretary of the Association, or by any two (2) Directors. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered. The notice shall be given to each Director by one of the following methods: (a) by personal delivery; (b) written notice by first class mail; (c) by telephone communication, either directly to the Director or to a person at the Director's office or home who would reasonably be expected to communicate such notice promptly to the Director; or (d) by telegram, charges prepaid. All such notices shall be given or sent to the Director's address or telephone number as shown on the records of the Association. Notices sent by first class mail shall be deposited into a United States mailbox at least four (4) days before the time set for the meeting. Notices given by personal delivery, telephone or telegraph shall be delivered, telephoned, or given to the telegraph company at least seventy-two (72) hours before the time set for the meeting.

Section 11. Waiver of Notice. The transactions of any meetings of the Board of Directors, however called and noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though taken at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice if (1) a quorum is present, and (2) either before or after the meeting each of the Directors not present signs a written waiver or notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the minutes. The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. Notice of a meeting shall also be deemed given to any Director who attends the meeting without protesting before or at its commencement about the lack of adequate notice.

Section 12. Quorum of Board of Directors. At all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board of Directors. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, notwithstanding the withdrawal of Directors, if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for that meeting. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted without further notice.

- <u>Section 13.</u> <u>Compensation.</u> No director shall receive any compensation from the Association for acting as such unless approved by a majority vote of the total vote of the Association at a regular or special meeting of the Association.
- Section 14. Conduct of Meetings. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors, and the Secretary shall keep a minute book of the Board of Directors, recording therein all resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors and a record of all transactions and proceedings occurring at such meetings.
- Section 15. Open Meeting. All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to all Members, but Members other than Directors may not participate in any discussion or deliberation unless expressly so authorized by a majority of a quorum of the Board
- Section 16. Executive Sessions. The Board may, with approval of a majority of a quorum, adjourn a meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss and vote upon personnel matters, litigation in which the Association is or may become involved, and orders of business of a similar nature. The nature of any and all business to be considered in executive session shall first be announced in open session.
- Section 17. Action without a Formal Meeting. Any action to be taken at a meeting of the Directors or any action that may be taken at a meeting of the Directors may be taken without a meeting if a consent is in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the Directors, and such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote.

C. Powers and Duties.

Section 18. Powers. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the affairs of the Association and shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the Association's affairs and, as provided by law, may do all acts and things as set forth by the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation or these By-laws directed to be done and exercised exclusively by the Members.

The Board of Directors shall delegate to one of its members the authority to act on behalf of the Board of Directors on all matters relating to the duties of the Managing Agent or Manager, if any, which might arise between meetings of the Board of Directors.

In addition to the duties imposed by these By-laws or by any resolution of the Association that may be hereafter adopted, the Board of Directors shall have the power to and be responsible for the following, in way of explanation, but not limitation:

- (a) preparation and adoption of an annual budget in which there shall be established the contribution of each Owner to the Common Expenses;
- (b) making Assessments to defray the Common Expenses, establishing means and methods of collecting such Assessments, and establishing the period of the installment payments

of the annual Assessment, provided otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, the annual Assessment against the proportionate share of the Common Expenses shall be payable in yearly installments, each such installment to be due and payable in advance on the first day of the year for said year;

- (c) providing for the operation, care, upkeep, and maintenance of any Common Area;
- (d) designating, hiring and dismissing the personnel necessary for the maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of the Association, its property, and any Common Area, and, where appropriate, providing for the compensation of such personnel and for the purchase of equipment, supplies and material to be used by such personnel in the performance of their duties;
- (e) collecting the Assessments, depositing the proceeds thereof in a bank depository which it shall approve, and using the proceeds to administer the Association;
 - (f) making and amending rules and regulations;
- (g) opening of bank accounts on behalf of the Association and designating the signatories required;
- (h) making or contracting for the making of repairs, additions and improvements to or alterations of any Common Area in accordance with the other provisions of the Declaration and these By-laws after damage or destruction by fire or other casualty;
- (i) enforcing by legal means the provisions of the Declaration, these By-laws, and the Rules and Regulations adopted by it and bringing any proceeds which may be instituted on behalf of or against the Owners of the Association;
- (j) obtaining and carrying insurance against casualties and liabilities, as provided in the Declaration, and paying the premium cost thereof;
- (k) paying the cost of all services rendered to the Association or its members and not chargeable to Owners;
- (l) keeping books with detailed accounts of the receipts and expenditures affecting the Association and its administration, specifying the maintenance and repair expenses and any other expenses incurred. The said books and vouchers accrediting the entries thereupon shall be available for examination by the Owners and Mortgagees, their duly authorized agents, accountants, or attorneys, during general business hours on working days at the time and in a manner that shall be set and announced by the Board of Directors for the general knowledge of the Owners.
- (m) make available to any prospective purchaser of a Residential Unit, any Owner of a Residential Unit, any first Mortgagee, and the holders, insurers, and guarantors of a first Mortgage on any Residential Unit, current copies of the Declaration, the Articles of

Incorporation, the By-laws, Rules and Regulations, and all other books, records and financial statements of the Association;

- (n) permit utility suppliers to use portions of any Common Area reasonably necessary to the ongoing development or operation of the Project; and
 - (o) paying Community Assessments to the Community Association on a yearly basis.

Section 19. Management Agent.

- (a) The Board of Directors may employ for the Association a professional management agent or agents at a compensation established by the Board of Directors to perform such duties and services as the Board of Directors shall authorize. The Board of Directors may delegate to the managing agent or manager, subject to the Board's supervision, all of the powers granted to the Board of Directors by these By-laws, other than the powers set forth in subparagraphs (a), (b), (d), (f), (g) and (i) of Section 18 of this Article III. The Declarant, or an affiliate of the Declarant, may be employed as managing agent or manager.
- (b) No management contract may have a term in excess of one (1) year and must permit termination by either party without cause and without termination fee on ninety (90) days' or less written notice.
- <u>Section 20.</u> <u>Accounts and Reports.</u> The following management standards of performance will be followed unless the Board of resolution specifically determines otherwise:
 - (a) cash basis accounting shall be employed;
- (b) accounting and controls should conform with established AICPA guidelines and principles, which require, without limitation, (i) a segregation of accounting duties, (ii) disbursements by check requiring two (2) signatures, and (iii) cash disbursements limited to amounts of Twenty-five (\$25.00) Dollars and under;
- (c) cash accounts of the Association shall not be commingled with any other accounts;
- (d) no remuneration shall be accepted by the Managing Agent from vendors, independent contractors, or others providing goods or services to the Association, whether in the form of commissions, finder's fees, service fees, prizes, gifts or otherwise; any thing of value received shall benefit the Association;
- (e) any financial or other interest which the Managing Agent may have in any firm providing goods or services to the Association shall be disclosed promptly to the Board of Directors; and

- (f) commencing at the end of the month in which the first Residential Unit is sold and closed, quarterly financial reports shall be prepared for the Association containing:
- (i) an Income and Expense Statement reflecting all income and expense activity for the preceding three (3) months on a cash basis:
- (ii) a Balance Sheet as of the last day of the Association's fiscal year and an Operating Statement for said fiscal year, which shall be distributed within ninety (90) days after the close of a fiscal year.
- (iii) a Delinquency Report listing all Owners who have been delinquent during the preceding three (3) month period in paying the monthly installments of Assessments and who remain delinquent at the time of the report and describing the status of any action to collect such installments which shall be considered to be delinquent on the fifteenth (15th) day of each month; and
- (iv) an annual report consisting of at least the following shall be distributed within one hundred twenty (120) days after the closing of the fiscal year: (1) a balance sheet as of the end of the fiscal year; (2) an operating (income) statement for the fiscal year; and (3) statement of changes in financial position for the fiscal year. If said report is not prepared by an independent accountant, it shall be accompanied by the certificate of an authorized officer of the Association that the statements were prepared without an audit from the books and records of the Association.
- Section 21. Borrowing. The Board of Directors shall have the power to borrow money for the purpose of repair or restoration of any Common Area without the approval of the Members of the Association; provided, however, the Board shall obtain membership approval in the same manner provided in Article VIII, Section 2, of the Declaration for Special Assessments in the event that the proposed borrowing is for the purpose of modifying, improving, or adding amenities, and the total amount of such borrowing exceeds or would exceed five percent (5%) of the budgeted gross expenses of the Association for that fiscal year.
- Section 22. Community Association Delegates. The Board of Directors shall elect from its Members two (2) directors who shall represent the Association on the Community Association's Board of Directors. The Community Association Delegates shall continue to act in that capacity until they are replaced or removed by the Board of Directors, from time to time. In the absence of appointment or election by the Board of Directors, the president and vice president of the Association shall serve as the Community Association Delegates.

ARTICLE IV OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Association shall be a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. The Board of Directors may elect such other officers, including one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall

deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors. Any two (2) or more offices may be held by the same person, excepting the offices of President and Secretary. The President and Treasurer shall be elected from among the members of the Board of Directors.

- Section 2. Election, Term of Office and Vacancy. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the Members, as herein set forth in Article III. A vacancy in any office arising because of death, resignation, removal, or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.
- Section 3. Removal. Any officer may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association will be served thereby.
- Section 4. Powers and Duties. The officers of the Association shall each have such powers and duties as generally pertain to their respective offices, as well as such powers and duties may from time to time be specifically conferred or imposed by the Board of Directors. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. The treasurer shall have primary responsibility for the preparation of the budget as provided for in the Declaration and may delegate all or part of the preparation and notification duties to a finance committee, management agent, of both.
- Section 5. Resignation. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the President, or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- Section 6. Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Leases, Checks, Etc. All agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks and other instruments of the Association shall be executed by the President or by such other person or persons as may be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE V COMMITTEES

Committees to perform such tasks and to serve for such periods as may be designated by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present are hereby authorized. Such committees shall perform such duties and have such powers as may be provided in the resolution. Each committee shall be composed as required by law and shall operate in accordance with the terms of the resolution of the Board of Directors designating the committee or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Fiscal Year. The initial fiscal year of the Association shall be set by resolution of the Board of Directors.

- Section 2. Parliamentary Rules. Except as may be modified by Board resolution establishing modified procedures, Robert's Rules of Order (current edition) shall govern the conduct of the Association proceedings when not in conflict with Indiana law, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration or these By-laws.
- Section 3. Conflicts. If there are conflicts or inconsistencies between the provisions of Indiana Law, the provisions of Indiana law, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, and the By-laws (in that order) shall prevail.

Section 4. Books and Records.

- (a) <u>Inspection by Members and Mortgagees.</u> The Declaration and By-laws, membership register, books of account, and minutes of meetings of the Members, the Board and committees shall be made available for inspection and copying by any Mortgagee, Member of the Association, or by his or her duly appointed representative at any reasonable time and for a purpose reasonably related to his or her interest as a Member at the office of the Association or at such other place within the Project as the Board shall prescribe.
- (b) <u>Inspection by Directors.</u> Every Director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, records and documents of the Association and the physical properties owned or controlled by the Association. The right of inspection by a Director includes the right to make extracts and copies of documents at the expense of the Association.
- Section 5. Notices. Unless otherwise provided in these By-laws, all notices, demands, bills, statements or other communications under these By-laws shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally or if sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, first class postage prepaid:
- (a) if to a Member, at the address which the Member has designated in writing and filed with the Secretary, or if no such address has been designated, at the address of the Residential Unit of such Owner; or
- (b) if to the Association, the Board of Directors, or the Managing Agent, if any, or at such other address as shall be designated by the notice in writing to the Owners pursuant to this Section.
- Section 6. Amendment. Declarant may amend the By-laws in accordance with the Declaration. These By-laws may be amended otherwise only by the affirmative vote (in person

or by proxy) or written consent of Members representing two-thirds (2/3) of the total votes of the Association (not a majority of a quorum).

EXHIBIT "D"

RULES AND REGULATIONS

- 1. <u>ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS.</u> No change in the exterior appearance of a Residential Unit, or the quality of the construction of a Residential Unit, can be changed in any way whatsoever without the prior approval of the Architectural Review Committee in accordance with the provisions of Article IX of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions and Easements for Auburn Meadow Townhome Association, Inc. (hereinafter the "Declaration"). The prohibition of this provision shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
- a. The construction of any exterior addition to any Residential Unit, or the construction of any temporary or permanent improvement or building on the lot on which the Residential Unit is located.
- b. The reconfiguration of any existing structure of a Residential Unit in any manner whatsoever.
- c. The use of any material on the exterior of any Residential Unit or associated structures which is not identical to that which was provided as a part of the original construction, both in quality, color and other appearances. Exceptions to this rule may be made by the Architectural Review Committee, so long as the Architectural Review Committee shall make an affirmative determination that such shall be and remain visually compatible with and in harmony with the appearance of the other Residential Units.
- d. The erection of aerials, antennas, clotheslines, awnings, or other similar items or devices, except within an enclosed private courtyard in such a manner that they are not visible from any ground level location from the exterior, and a 21" maximum size satellite may be placed on the rear roof of any Residential Unit.
- e. Storm doors and windows shall not be added to a Residential Unit, except in accordance with written Association specifications.
- f. The erection or maintenance of any fences or othe except for those which are a part of the original construction.
- g. The use of window coverings which are not white or beige appearance when viewed from the exterior of
- h. The use of mailboxes not in conformit location requirements of the Architectural Review Cr installed for each Residential Unit shall be approved representative of the Declarant or shall conform requirements of the Declarant.
 - i. The construction of swimming

EXHIBIT D

j. The construction or placement of structures to house or restrain pets.

In addition to the foregoing prohibitions, each Owner shall have an affirmative obligation to maintain and repair his and/or her Residential Unit in such a manner as to maintain at all times the uniformity of appearance of such Residential Unit with all others in the community.

- 2. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF RESIDENTIAL UNITS. Except as provided in Article IV, of the Declaration, it is the Owners sole and exclusive responsibility to maintain and repair his and/or her Residential Unit. The Association's responsibility shall include not only routine maintenance and care of these lawn and landscaped areas, but also the replacement of grass, sod, and trees and shrubbery which were a part of the original landscaping. It shall also be the responsibility of the Association to provide water for lawns and repair the lawn irrigation system as needed. Furthermore, it shall be the Association's responsibility to repair or replace any grass, sodding, or landscaping which has been damaged or destroyed by the actions or omissions of any Owner but it shall be the responsibility of the responsible Owner to pay all costs associated therewith.
- 3. <u>INSURANCE</u>. As of the adoption of these Rules and Regulations by the Association, the Association has elected not to obtain casualty insurance on Residential Units in accordance with the provisions of Article V, Section 1 of the Declaration. Accordingly, it is the sole and exclusive responsibility of each Owner of a Residential Unit to provide casualty insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration. It is, therefore, the Owner's responsibility to be familiar with and comply with Article V of the Declaration in every aspect. This obligation shall include, but not be limited to, the requirements that all casualty insurance be for the full replacement value, that the proceeds thereof be payable to the Insurance Trustee, and that all liability insurance policies show the Association and all Residential Unit Owners as named insureds.
- 4. <u>SIGNS.</u> No Owner shall display any sign on any part of any Residential Unit, for so long as Declarant owns any Residential Unit or until the expiration of five (5) years. After five (5) years, only temporary but tasteful "For Sale" signs are permitted.
- 5. <u>VEHICLES</u>. No motor homes, campers, trailers, boats of any kind, or trucks in excess of 3/4-ton capacity, shall be parked at any time on any Residential Unit, except inside closed garages in a manner that shall allow the garage door to be closed entirely.
 - 6. <u>LEASING RESTRICTIONS.</u> Intentionally Deleted.
- 7. <u>MINIMUM HEAT.</u> The minimum heat in every Residential Unit shall not be less than sixty (60) degrees Faranheit. for the period of time from November 1 to April 15 each year.

EXHIBIT D

- 8. <u>NOISE.</u> Loud music or television or any other sound which may be objectionable to any other Owner or Occupant is prohibited at all times.
- 9. <u>CAR WASHING.</u> No car or other vehicle washing is permitted on any of the Residential Units in any manner which would allow soaps, detergents, or other chemical liquids or compounds to damage any lawn or landscaped area.
- 10. <u>PETS.</u> In accordance with Article X, Section 6 of the Declaration, only two (2) pets (either a dog(s) or cat (s)) shall be allowed to be kept in or on the Residential Unit, and otherwise, an Owner may not keep, raise or bred any animals, livestock or poultry in or on any Residential Unit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following shall apply with regard to any pet which is allowed to be kept in or on a Residential Unit:
- a. Owners of a cat or dog shall be required to keep same on leash at all times when pets are outside the home.
- b. Owners of a cat or a dog shall be required to immediately remove all forms of excrement of such pets from the Property, including, but not limited to, lawns, driveways, and parking areas, and such pets shall not be allowed to deposit excrement in any manner, or in any place, that would in any manner change or deface the Property, including any alteration in the uniformity of appearance of the lawn or landscaped area.
- c. No pet will be allowed which creates noise, emits noxious odors or creates unsafe or unhealthy living conditions, or other disturbances of any kind, whether on a continuous or intermittent basis, and regardless of the time of day or night.
- d. Any Owner of a pet allowed hereunder, who is the subject of three (3) or more justifiable complaints of violation of this rule, shall forthwith permanently remove the pet from his or her Residential Unit, upon notice of same from the Board of Directors, and said Owner shall not be allowed to have any pets within the Residential Unit at any time thereafter, except with the express prior written consent of the Board of Directors.
- e. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to make regular Assessments against any and all Owners with pets for the purpose of paying any additional costs which may be involved in maintaining and/or repairing the Property as a direct or indirect result of the housing of pets within the project. These Assessments may consist of a regular monthly or other periodic Assessment against all Owners housing pets, to be paid in the same manner and at the same time as the General Assessment for Common Expenses, and such an Assessment may be based upon an estimate of the cost of maintaining and/or repairing the Property necessitated by the housing of pets within the Residential Unit. The failure of any Owner housing a pet to pay such Assessments shall automatically result in the immediate and permanent removal of such in such Owner's Residential Unit at any time thereafter, and the Association and the individual members shall have law for violation of these Rules and Regulations.

EXHIBIT D

- 11. <u>GARBAGE</u>. All garbage receptacles shall be located and stored in such a place as to be not visible from any ground level location in the Project, excepting only on those days of garbage collection, in which case such garbage containers, when empty, shall be immediately relocated to a place as described above.
- 12. RESPONSIBILITY FOR ASSESSMENTS AND COMPLIANCE WITH DECLARATION. The Owner is always responsible for Association Assessments, insurance deductibles or any other charge the Board of Directors may direct to the Residential Units, and the compliance by all Occupants (including tenants and subtenants) with the provisions of the Declaration, regardless of whether the Residential Unit is occupied by the Owner or by an Occupant, and regardless of any agreement which such Owner may have with any such Occupant, tenant or subtenant.
- 13. OWNERS OBLIGATION TO PROVIDE INFORMATION TO THE ASSOCIATION. All Owners shall advise the Association in writing of the names, residence addresses (if different from that of the Residential Unit owned) and telephone numbers of all Owners, Occupants and all tenants, subtenants and other occupants; and the name, business address and telephone numbers of all Mortgagees of record on the Residential Unit owned, and all such information provided in accordance herewith shall be updated in writing by each Owner within fifteen (15) days, upon the request of the Board of Directors.

STATE OF INDIAG LAKE COUNTY FILED FOR RECORD

Parcel No. 2002 120871

2002 DEC 30 PM 3: 14

CORPORATE WARRANTY DEED

MORNIS W. CARTER RECORDER

Order No.

THIS INDENTITIES WITNESSETH That And	
THIS RESERVORE WITHESSEIR, THAT AU	ourn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a limited
liability company (Grantor) a corporation organized an	d existing under the laws of the State of INDIANA
CONVEYS AND WARRANTS to Aubu	rn Meadow Townhome Association, Inc.
(Grantee) of Lake County, in the State of INDL	ANA , for the sum of TEN AND 00/100
Dollars (\$10.00) and other va	luable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the following describe	d real estate inLake County, State
of Indiana:	
Outlot A & B, in Auburn Meadow Subdivision Ph	and I am addition to the Terror of Calance illa
Lake County, Indiana, as per Corrected Plat thereo	ase 1, an addition to the 10wh of Schererville,
Office of the Recorder of Lake County, Indiana.	n, appearing in Plat Book 91, Page 6, in the
Office of the Recorder of Lake County, Indiana.	
Subject to real estate taxes for 2002 payable in 2003 to	nother with dellar and and assets. If any and all
real estate taxes due and payable thereafter.	gether with definquency and penaity, if any, and an
real estate taxes due and payable increation.	
Grantors certify under oath that no Indiana Ger	oss Income Tax is due or payable in respect to the
transfer made by this Deed.	oss meditie Tax is due of payable in respect to the
Subject to any and all easements, agreements a	nd sections of second
budget to any and an easements, agreements a	and restrictions of record.
The undersioned persons executing this deed of	n behalf of Grantor represent and certify that they
are duly elected officers of Grantor and have been fully	ampowered by proper regulation of the Board of
Directors of Grantor, to execute and deliver this deed;	that Grantor has full comporate capacity to convey
the real estate described herein; and that all necessary	corporate action for the making of such conveyance
has been taken and done	
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has execut	ed this deed 12th day of December
, 2002	
	3
	Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C.
(SEAL) ATTEST:	(Name of Corporation)
Ву	By Freduich a Othy
	. —
	- 11
[Frederick A. Olthof, President
Printed Name, and Office	Frederick A. Olthof, President Printed Name, and Office
Printed Name, and Office	
STATE OF Indiana SS:	
STATE OF Indiana SS:	
STATE OF Indiana SS: COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and	Printed Name, and Office State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the
STATE OF Indiana SS: COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective	Printed Name, and Office State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a
STATE OF Indiana SS: COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution	Printed Name, and Office State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a of the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said
STATE OF Indiana SS: COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that	Printed Name, and Office State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a n of the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true.
STATE OF Indiana SS: COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution	Printed Name, and Office State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a n of the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true.
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this 12-44	Printed Name, and Office State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a n of the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature	Printed Name, and Office State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a n of the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day ofDecember, 20_02
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a nof the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed Resident of Resident of	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a nof the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: January 24, 2007 Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a nof the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day ofDecember, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary PublicLAKECounty, Indiana resident
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P Return Document to: 1945 Harder Ct., Schererville, IN	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a n of the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana resident 46375 DULY ENIEREDECR TAYATUNISIS ENTRO COUNTY
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: January 24, 2007 Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a nof the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana resident 46375 DULY ENJEREDEGR TAXATION SUBJECT TO
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P Return Document to: 1945 Harder Ct., Schererville, IN	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a nof the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana resident 46375 DULY ENTEREDEOR TAXATION SUBJECT TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE FOR TRANSFER
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P Return Document to: 1945 Harder Ct., Schererville, IN	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a n of the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana resident 46375 DULY ENIFREDECE TAYATUNGUE ENTRO
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P Return Document to: 1945 Harder Ct., Schererville, IN	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a nof the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana resident 46375 DULY ENIFEREDEOR TAXATION SUBJECT TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE FOR TRANSFER DEC 3 0 2002
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P Return Document to: 1945 Harder Ct., Schererville, IN	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a nof the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana resident 46375 DULY ENIFEREDEOR TAXATION SUBJECT TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE FOR IRANSFER DEC 3 0 2002 DETER RENJAMIN
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P Return Document to: 1945 Harder Ct., Schererville, IN	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a nof the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana resident 46375 DULY ENIFEREDEOR TAXATION SUBJECT TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE FOR TRANSFER DEC 3 0 2002
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P Return Document to: 1945 Harder Ct., Schererville, IN	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a of the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberly Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana resident 46375 DEC 3 0 2002 PETER BENJAMIN LAKE COUNTY AUDITOR
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P Return Document to: 1945 Harder Ct., Schererville, IN	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a nof the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana resident 46375 DULY ENIFREDEOR TAXATION SUBJECT TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE FOR IRANSFER DEC 3 0 2002 DETER RENJAMIN
STATE OF Indiana COUNTY OF Lake Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and President of OD Enterprises, Inc. (Manager) respective limited liability company who acknowledged execution Grantor, and who, having been duly sworn, stated that Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this My commission expires: Signature Printed Resident of This instrument prepared by: Frederick A. Olthof, P Return Document to: 1945 Harder Ct., Schererville, IN	State, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof the ly of Auburn Meadow Development, L.L.C., a of the foregoing Deed for and on behalf of said the representations therein contained are true. day of December, 2002 Kimberl Jermolowicz, Notary Public LAKE County, Indiana resident 46375 DEC 3 0 2002 PETER BENJAMIN LAKE COUNTY AUDITOR

2003 056573

2003 JUN - L PM 12: 50
RECORDER

FIRST AMENDMENT TO DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR AUBURN MEADOW TOWNHOME ASSOCIATION

THIS 1ST AMENDMENT is entered into this 3rd day of June, 2003, by AUBURN MEADOW DEVELOPMENT, LLC (hereinafter referred to as "Declarant").

WHEREAS, Declarant executed that certain Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions for Auburn Meadow Townhome Association recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Lake County, Indiana on March 5, 2002 as instrument no. 2002-022840; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article XVII, Section 9, Declarant reserves the right and option to amend the Declaration to add additional property by Subsequent Amendment; and

WHEREAS, Declarant now desires and intends hereby to so amend the Declaration.

NOW THEREFORE, Declarant does hereby amend the Declaration as follows:

- Exhibit A is amended by adding the following real estate:
 Lots 19-23, and 39-41 of Auburn Meadow Subdivision Phase 2 as recorded October 15, 2002, Book 92, Page 61, in the office of the Recorder, Lake County, Indiana; and Lots 10, 15-18 and 42-44 of Auburn Meadow Subdivision Phase 4 as recorded April 15, 2003, Book 093, Page 45, in the office of the Recorder, Lake County, Indiana.
- Acceptance expressly set forth therein, the Declaration shall remain in full force and effect with its terms and conditions.
- 3. Unless otherwise provided, all capitalized terms herein will have the same meaning as given in the Declaration.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Declarant has executed this Amendment to Declaration this 3rd day of June, 2003.

AUBURN MEADOW DEVELOPMENT, LLC

BY: Fucles a Dartes

Frederick A. Olthof, President of OD Enterprises, Inc., Manager of Auburn Meadow Development, LLC STATE OF INDIANA)

COUNTY OF LAKE)

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public in and for Lake County, State of Indiana, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof who, being duly sworn upon his oath, acknowledged that he is the President of OD Enterprises, LLC, Manager of Auburn Meadow Development, LLC and that he is authorized and empowered so to do, executed the above and foregoing Amendment to Declaration for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

My commission Expires: 9-16-10
County of Residence: Lako

GAIL M. ANDERSON Notary Public <u>SEAL</u> State of Indiana My Commission Expires Sept. 16, 2010

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: Greg Bouwer, of Koransky & Bouwer, P.C., 425 Joliet Street, Dyer, IN 46311

2003 056574

2003 JUH - 4 7% 12: 49

FIRST AMENDMENT TO DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR AUBURN MEADOW TOWNHOME ASSOCIATION

THIS 1ST AMENDMENT is entered into this 3rd day of June, 2003, by AUBURN MEADOW DEVELOPMENT, LLC (hereinafter referred to as "Declarant").

WHEREAS, Declarant executed that certain Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions for Auburn Meadow Townhome Association recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Lake County, Indiana on March 5, 2002 as instrument no. 2002-022840; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article XVII, Section 9, Declarant reserves the right and option to amend the Declaration to add additional property by Subsequent Amendment; and

WHEREAS, Declarant now desires and intends hereby to so amend the Declaration.

NOW THEREFORE, Declarant does hereby amend the Declaration as follows:

- Exhibit A is amended by adding the following real estate: Lots 19-23, and 39-41 of Auburn Meadow Subdivision Phase 2 as recorded October 15, 2002, Book 92, Page 61, in the office of the Recorder, Lake County, Indiana; and Lots 10, 15-18 and 42-44 of Auburn Meadow Subdivision Phase 4 as recorded April 15, 2003, Book 093, Page 45, in the office of the Recorder, Lake County, Indiana.
- Acceptance expressly set forth therein, the Declaration shall remain in full force and effect with its terms and conditions.
- Unless otherwise provided, all capitalized terms herein will have the same meaning as given in 3 the Declaration.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Declarant has executed this Amendment to Declaration this 3rd day of June, 2003.

AUBURN MEADOW DEVELOPMENT, LLC

BY: Indent U Tatos

Frederick A. Olthof, President of OD Enterprises, Inc.,

Manager of Auburn Meadow Development, LLC

Olthof/Auburn Meadow/Townhome/Amendment to Declaration 060303 Town

STATE OF INDIANA)
COUNTY OF LAKE)

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public in and for Lake County, State of Indiana, personally appeared Frederick A. Olthof who, being duly sworn upon his oath, acknowledged that he is the President of OD Enterprises, LLC, Manager of Auburn Meadow Development, LLC and that he is authorized and empowered so to do, executed the above and foregoing Amendment to Declaration for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

DATED this _____ day of

_, 2003

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission Expires: $\frac{G}{2} - \frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{2}$ County of Residence:

GAIL M. ANDERSON
Notary Public
SEAL
State of Indiana
My Commission Expires Sept. 16, 2010

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: Greg Bouwer, of Koransky & Bouwer, P.C., 425 Joliet Street, Dyer, IN 46311